
CITY OF HANOVER 
PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 

FEBRUARY 26, 2018 
 
 
CHAIR           BOARD MEMBERS   
STAN KOLASA      JIM SCHENDEL 
        MICHAEL CHRISTENSON 
COUNCIL LIAISON     MICHELLE ARMSTRONG 
DOUG HAMMERSENG     DEAN KUITUNEN 
 
 
1. Call to Order and Pledge of Allegiance: 7:00p.m. Oath of Office 

 
2. Approval of Agenda 
 
3. Approval of Minutes from January 22, 2018, Regular Meeting 

 
4. Citizen’s Forum 

 
5. Public Hearing 

a. Requested Conditional Use Permit to Permit an Accessory Building in the Side 
Yard and to Exceed the Footprint of the Home 

b. Comprehensive Plan Amendment for the Hanover Cove Development and 
Review of Concept Plan 

 
6. Unfinished Business 

a. Amendments to the Zoning Ordinance Related to Mining and Extraction 
 
7. New Business 

a. H & R Construction Co.:  8th Street Industrial Park Site Plan 
 

8. Reports and Announcements 
a. Planning Commission Reports 
b. Liaison Report 
c. Staff Reports 

 
9. Adjournment 
 
 



CITY OF HANOVER 
PLANNING COMMISION MEETING 

JANUARY 22, 2018 
DRAFT MINUTES 

 

Call to Order/Pledge of Allegiance 
Stan Kolasa called the January 22, 2018, Planning Commission Meeting to order at 7:00 pm.  Members 
present were Stan Kolasa, Jim Schendel, Michelle Armstrong, Dean Kuitunen, and Mike Christenson.  Also 
present Council Liaison Doug Hammerseng, City Planner Cindy Nash, and Administrative Assistant Amy 
Biren.  Guests present:  Gary Fehn. 
 
Oath of Office 
Dean Kuitunen took the Oath of Office with Biren acting as the witness for the City. 
 
Selection of Chair and Vice Chair 
MOTION:  Kuitunen moved to nominate Stan Kolasa for chair seconded by Armstrong.   
Motion carried unanimously. 
 
MOTION:  Armstrong moved to nominate Jim Schendel for vice chair seconded by Christenson.   
Motion carried unanimously. 
 
Approval of Agenda 
MOTION by Schendel to approve the agenda as presented, seconded by Armstrong.   
Motion carried unanimously. 
 
Approval of Minutes from the December 12, 2017, Regular Meeting 
MOTION by Schendel to approve the December 12, 2076, minutes as presented, seconded by Christenson.  
Motion carried unanimously. 
 
Citizen’s Forum 
 None 
 
Public Hearing 
 None 
 
Unfinished Business 

a. Amendments to the Zoning Ordinance Related to Mining and Extraction 

Nash reviewed the memo from the Agenda Packet which focused on the discussions held by Council at the 
December 19, 2017, work session.  It was also determined that the ordinance would need to go back to the 
Planning Commission. 
 Aggregate Tax-Recycled Materials:  Council had wondered if the aggregate tax also applied to 
materials brought to the mine site that were intended for recycling.  Nash found that the aggregate tax only 
applies to the minerals extracted from the actual mine, nothing that is brought in.  Christenson asked Gary 
Fehn how they track aggregate from the recycled materials.  Fehn said that they track it on the computer 
and use the aggregate amounts to calculate the tax. 
 Collector Roads:  The draft ordinance requires mine operations to utilize a 10-ton collector road 
that does not travel through a residential area.  The current status of collector roads was questioned.  Nash 
confirmed with the City Engineer, Justin Messner, that the new MNDOT standards would be a 10-ton 
rating.  This would apply to future mining operations.  Nash showed a map of the collector roads per the 
2008 Comprehensive Plan.  Many of the current collector roads are not rated as such and would require 



improvement prior to any new mining operations.  The Planning Commission has some options:  The draft 
ordinance can stay as proposed with collector roads being 10 ton or the Commission recommends different 
tonnage ratings and Council would have the final say.  Schendel asked what would it take to bring the 
current collector roads up to the 10-ton standard.  Nash replied that it would depend on what shape the road 
was in.  Kuitunen asked what 15th Street is rated as that is one of the roads in poorer condition.  Staff 
believes it is rated 9 ton, but that it is shared with the City of St. Michael.  Fehn said that state roads are 10 
ton and thinks that CSAH 19 is a 9 ton.  Hammerseng asked Fehn what a typical amount is hauled in one 
of their trucks.  Fehn said that it is usually between 7 and 9 ton per axel.  Christenson asked about what the 
agreement between St. Michael and Hanover regarding 15th Street states.  Kolasa said that there is an 
agreement.  Staff acknowledged that they do not know what is in that agreement and will find out.  
Armstrong asked who would make the improvements to 15th Street.  Nash replied that whomever starts a 
new mining operation would be responsible for the improvements.  She went on to say that over time, cities 
can determine a tonnage for a road, but the road will deteriorate over time and in fact, not meet the tonnage 
rating at all.  Christenson said that some of the roads are already in rough shape and he is concerned about 
them deteriorating even more for the residents.  Schendel said that if the Ruter land is mined, it would be 
difficult to haul the minerals without going through a residential area.  Fehn said that if that occurs, the 
minerals would be hauled out through the current Mahler Pit site unless that land is sold.  Fehn went on to 
say that the goal would be to mine the Ruter land and then get housing on it.  Schendel wondered if it 
needed to be changed as the 9-ton rating seemed to be working.  He went on to say that sand and gravel can 
be measured more accurately than other materials so that the road tonnage rating can be met.  Armstrong 
said she would be inclined to leave it at the 9-ton rating.  No matter what is decided, St. Michael would 
need to be included in a change since there is a shared road.  Hammerseng asked if the tonnage can be left 
out of the draft ordinance and then when a new mining project is eminent, decide if a variance is needed.  
Nash replied that a tonnage needs to be in the ordinance because this is not something that would apply to 
the variance process.  She added that the City Engineer is recommending 10 ton.  Christenson said that he 
is reluctant to go against the engineer’s recommendation.  Kolasa said that answers need to found to the 
group’s questions as well as getting input from St. Michael. 
 Size of Stockpiled Recycled Materials:  The size of the pile of recycled materials waiting to be 
crushed was asked to be increased to 50,000 cubic yards.  Nash said that usually such material is dumped 
over a cliff into an empty section of the mine.  She said that it is not a guarantee that it would be stockpiled 
on the mine floor, but that is the usual practice.  Hammerseng asked how visible would this be in comparison 
to the materials being extracted.  Nash said that the applicant would have to show on the site plan where 
this would be located and how it would be screened.  Hammerseng asked Fehn if the Mahler Pit was 
currently set up for recycled materials.  Fehn replied that is was not, but that any new operation it would 
more than likely be in the bottom of the pit.  Hammerseng asked if the equipment to crush it was taller than 
the stockpile.  Fehn said that it typically is taller, but that it is a short-term operation and usually lasts only 
a couple of weeks.  Christenson said he is fine with a larger stockpile and admitted he probably would not 
know the difference between the two figures.  Hammerseng said he is more concerned with the site and 
sound of the recycling process. 
 
Nash asked for direction regarding the tonnage rating for the collector roads.  Kolasa said that he is 
comfortable with it not coming back to Planning and going right to Council. Christenson agreed.  
Hammerseng said that it needs to be discussed in Planning as this is where the main work is completed 
prior to going forward to Council.  Kuitunen and Armstrong agreed. 
 
It was asked that Justin Messner be asked to attend the next meeting in order to provide some answers to 
the questions raised at this meeting. 
 
Fehn asked if the feet of separation being maintained between the lowest grade mining permitted and the 
water table could be discussed.  He wondered if ponding could be permitted which would make it lower 
than the water table.  Ponds are used in the process so that if a heavy rainfall occurs, the water has 
somewhere to go and does not collect in the bottom of the mine.  Hammerseng said that the number of feet 



of separation has already been decreased from what was proposed.  He explained that there is a concern 
about the potential damage which may occur to the water table itself as well as the Crow River.  Schendel 
said that having a pond in the mine is typical. 
 
MOTION by Schendel to table the mining ordinance until the next meeting, seconded by Armstrong. 
Motion carried unanimously. 
 
Reports and Announcements: 
 Staff:  Nash said that next month’s meeting will be busy.  There is a CUP application for a shed, 
there will be a site plan for the empty lot on 8th Street in the Industrial Park, there will be a concept plan for 
the Duininck Pit as well as a Comprehensive Plan Amendment.  She explained that a developer is looking 
at residential construction for the Duininck Pit.  Staff has met with the developer and the concept plan will 
presented next month. 
 
 
Adjournment 
MOTION by Armstrong to adjourn, seconded by Christenson.   
Motion carried unanimously.   
Meeting adjourned at 7:52 pm. 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
 
       
Amy L. Biren 
Administrative Assistant 
 
 



   

Collaborative Planning, LLC 

Memorandum 
Meeting Date: February 26, 2018 

To:   Planning Commission 

From:    Cindy Nash, City Planner 

RE: CUP for an Accessory Building within a Side Yard 
and CUP for accessory buildings larger than the 
footprint of the home – 10723 Ginseng 

Overview of Request  

The subject property is currently zoned R-A (Residential Agriculture District) and an 
application has been received for a Conditional Use Permit for to allow an accessory building 
in the side yard and a Conditional Use Permit to allow accessory buildings larger than the 
footprint of the home.   The property is located at 10677 Jonquil.   

The application is included in your packets and contains their proposed request.  

 

Evaluation of Request 

The applicant is seeking permission to construct garage in their side yard.  The placement of 
an accessory building in the side yard is permitted only with the issuance of a Conditional 



10677 Jonquil CUP 

2/23/2018  2 

Use Permit.   The proposed building is approximately 40 feet by 80 feet.  There is an existing 
accessory building that is approximately 50 feet by 90 feet on the other side of the home. 

The parcel is approximately 38 acres in size, and is surrounded by other large parcels.  
Neither the existing or proposed building are near any other residential dwellings, and both 
are setback approximately 1400 feet from Jonquil. 

 

Recommendation 

The City Planner recommends that the two Conditional Use Permits be approved, subject to 
the following conditions: 

1.  The building shall be consistent with the size and location as shown on the 
survey dated January 25, 2018 and prepared by Hy-Land Surveying, P.A.   

2. The property shall remain in substantial conformance with all performance 
standards contained within the City Zoning Ordinance and City Code. 



10677 Jonquil Lane N

February 13, 2018
Map Powered by DataLink
 from WSB & Associates

1 inch =    376 feet





Collaborative Planning, LLC 
 

 

MEMORANDUM      
 
 TO:  Planning Commission 
 
 FROM: Cindy Nash, AICP, City Planner 
 
 DATE: February 26, 2018 
 

SUBJECT: Hanover Cove for (1) Comprehensive Plan Amendment; and (2) 
Concept Plan  

   
 APPLICANT: Paxmar, LLC 
 
 LOCATION: Generally located east of River road and south of 8th Street   

 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN: Neighborhood Residential and Industrial 

 
  

Description of Request 
 
The applicant is proposing to develop the Duininck gravel mine into a mixed-residential 
neighborhood consisting of single-family homes, patio homes, twinhomes and townhomes.  The 
gravel mine has not been reclaimed.  The property contains approximately 82.6 acres.  The 
concept plan shows approximately 337 new housing units.   
 
This development is requesting the following reviews:   
 

1. Comprehensive Plan Amendment 
2. Concept Plan 

 
The following items are included in the packet for review: 
 

1. Hanover Cove Concept Plan 
2. 2009 Future Land Use Map 

 
 
 
 
 
  



City of Hanover 
Hanover Cove 
Meeting Date of February 26, 2018 
Page 2 of 3 
 
 

 

Item 1:  Comprehensive Plan Amendment 
 
Public Hearing: February 26, 2018 Planning Commission 
 
Existing Comprehensive Plan Guidance 
 
The northern portion of the property is guided Neighborhood Residential in the Comprehensive 
Plan, which allows for development at densities between two (2) to four (4) units per acre.   The 
southern portion of the property is guided industrial.  The City is in the process of preparing an 
update to the Comprehensive Plan, and the draft future land use map shows this entire property 
as being guided Neighborhood Residential. 
 
Neighborhood Residential is a designation for properties that have developed, or are suitable to 
be developed, in a moderate-density residential neighborhood with full provision of necessary 
urban services.  Net density (land area excluding collector road right of way, ponding, wetlands, 
bluff, and permanently protected environmental resources) shall be between 2 and 4 units per 
acre. This area is also intended to prevent the establishment of various commercial, industrial, 
and higher density residential developments that will conflict with the character of the area. 
 
Utilizing the density calculations, this development would have the following density: 
 
Gross Acreage   82.6 acres 
Less Ponding     12.2 acres 
Equals Net Acreage  70.4 acres    
 
Density = 337 units/70.24 acres = 4.79 units/acre 
 
This density is greater than would be permitted under this Comprehensive Plan guidance.  
However, the preliminary plat can be designed in a manner to meet the density requirements.  In 
addition, the ponding acreage exclusions will be more precisely calculated with the preliminary 
plat submittal. 
 
Recommendation: 
 
Staff recommends approving the amendment to the Comprehensive Plan. 
 
  



City of Hanover 
Hanover Cove 
Meeting Date of February 26, 2018 
Page 3 of 3 
 
 

 

Item 2:  Concept Plan 
 
Public Hearing: None Required 
 
Planned Unit Development (PUD) 
 
A concept plan is a courtesy review of a proposed project prior to engineering design being 
completed.  Staff and consultants have reviewed the concept plan and offer the following 
comments: 
 

1. The site must be designed to meet the density requirements of the Comprehensive Plan (2 
to 4 units per net developable acre). 

2. An application for a Planned Unit Development may be needed. 
3. The location of the southern entrance is very close to the existing intersection of River 

Road and Riverview Road. Consider eliminating this access or revising the proposed 
layout. River Road is a collector street therefore a minimum of 300-ft between 
intersections is desirable to reduce interference between intersections. 

4. The City should consider whether a connection to Duinick Road should be made in the 
southeast corner of the project. 

5. Homes adjacent to River Road should be provided with additional depth and a buffer 
should be installed between the back yards and River Road. 

6. Consideration should be given for the location of entrance monument signage. 
7. The main entrance to the neighborhood has patio homes, 4-plex row homes, and 

twinhomes basically all meeting together.  Consideration should be given to adjusting the 
transition between housing product types to provide for a better visual appearance, and 
also to the appearance of the neighborhood upon arrival.  The use of landscaping may 
assist with this where more abrupt transitions are needed. 

8. The southwest corner of the concept plan identifies 3 4-plex buildings that are located 
essentially within a single-family home area.  Consideration should be given to changing 
these to single-family homes. 

9. The City’s Comprehensive Plan does not identify a need for additional park land in this 
location.  More information will need to be submitted with the preliminary plat 
application that shows the use and purpose of this additional park land, as well as how it 
could be usefully improved and incorporated with the existing park.  It may be sufficient 
for this neighborhood to link to the existing park by a trail connection instead of adding 
additional park land.    

10. The area surrounding the stormwater pond should not be labeled as park. The City will 
not give park dedication credit for this area.   

11. Corner lots should be wider than a typical lot to accommodate increased corner side yard 
setbacks. 

12. City standard details will be provided. 
 



© DUININCK INC. 20    .  ANY USE OR
REUSE OF THIS PLAN/DRAWING AND
THE CORRESPONDING COMPUTER
AIDED DESIGN/DRAFTING FILES
WITHOUT THE EXPRESS WRITTEN
CONSENT OF DUININCK INC. IS
PROHIBITED.  DUININCK INC. SHALL
NOT BE RESPONSIBLE FOR ANY
UNAUTHORIZED USE OR REUSE OF
THESE MATERIAL, OR DAMAGES
RESULTING THEREFROM.

P.O BOX 208

408 SIXTH STREET

PRINSBURG, MN  56281

PHONE: (320) 978-6011

FAX: (320) 978-4978

18

Feet

0 200 400

AutoCAD SHX Text
214.43

AutoCAD SHX Text
214.16 DEED

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 89°11'48" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 24°25'37" E 225.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXCEPTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 23°01'04" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
181.44

AutoCAD SHX Text
181.0 DEED

AutoCAD SHX Text
258.54 DEED

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 71°26'26" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 23°01'04" W 178.49

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 71°26'26" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXCEPTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXCEPTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
 N 23°01'04" E 626.38

AutoCAD SHX Text
97.97 S 89°01'28" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
375.24 N 82°56'42" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
343.00 S 89°14'18" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
30.00 S 00°45'42" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 89°14'18" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
243.43 PLAT

AutoCAD SHX Text
243.39 MEAS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
30.00 N 18°58'31" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
150.00 S 70°51'00" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
   S 18°58'31" E 30.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
770.99 MEAS. 771.16 PLAT S 70°51'00" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
121.12 S 15°56'19" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
1274.2 8S 00°56'55" WS 00°56'55" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 89°14'50" E 1267.77

AutoCAD SHX Text
Δ

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 89°11'01" E 3.23

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 40°23'24" E 547.58

AutoCAD SHX Text
Δ

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 00°40'25" E 0.02

AutoCAD SHX Text
Ch.Brg.=N 21°43'42" E Ch.=514.68

AutoCAD SHX Text
66

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIVERVIEW ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIVER ROAD N.E. (OLD CO. RD. NO. 19)

AutoCAD SHX Text
GARNET COURT

AutoCAD SHX Text
5TH STREET N.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIVER ROAD N.E. (OLD CO. RD. NO. 19)

AutoCAD SHX Text
8TH STREET NORTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIVERVIEW ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
DUINICK ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
214.43

AutoCAD SHX Text
214.16 DEED

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 89°11'48" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 24°25'37" E 225.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXCEPTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 23°01'04" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
181.44

AutoCAD SHX Text
181.0 DEED

AutoCAD SHX Text
258.54 DEED

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 71°26'26" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 23°01'04" W 178.49

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 71°26'26" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXCEPTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXCEPTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
 N 23°01'04" E 626.38

AutoCAD SHX Text
97.97 S 89°01'28" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
375.24 N 82°56'42" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
343.00 S 89°14'18" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
30.00 S 00°45'42" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 89°14'18" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
243.43 PLAT

AutoCAD SHX Text
243.39 MEAS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
30.00 N 18°58'31" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
150.00 S 70°51'00" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
   S 18°58'31" E 30.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
770.99 MEAS. 771.16 PLAT S 70°51'00" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
121.12 S 15°56'19" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
1274.2 8S 00°56'55" WS 00°56'55" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 89°14'50" E 1267.77

AutoCAD SHX Text
Δ

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 89°11'01" E 3.23

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 40°23'24" E 547.58

AutoCAD SHX Text
Δ

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 00°40'25" E 0.02

AutoCAD SHX Text
Ch.Brg.=N 21°43'42" E Ch.=514.68

AutoCAD SHX Text
8TH STREET NORTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
33 - 65' SINGLE FAMILY

AutoCAD SHX Text
14 - 65' SINGLE FAMILY

AutoCAD SHX Text
14 - 75' SINGLE FAMILY

AutoCAD SHX Text
6 - 75' SINGLE FAMILY

AutoCAD SHX Text
11 - 75' SINGLE FAMILY

AutoCAD SHX Text
6 - 104' 4-PLEX ROW HOMES (36 UNITS)

AutoCAD SHX Text
9 - 65' SINGLE FAMILY

AutoCAD SHX Text
18 - 50' PATIO HOMES

AutoCAD SHX Text
9 - 50' PATIO HOMES

AutoCAD SHX Text
8 - 80' TWIN HOMES (16 UNITS)

AutoCAD SHX Text
7 - 80' TWIN HOMES (14 UNITS)

AutoCAD SHX Text
14 - 50' PATIO HOMES

AutoCAD SHX Text
INFILTRATION/DRAINAGE BASIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
12 - 80' TWIN HOMES (24 UNITS)

AutoCAD SHX Text
8 - 65' SINGLE FAMILY

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARK/STORMWATER POND

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARK

AutoCAD SHX Text
11 - 65' SINGLE FAMILY

AutoCAD SHX Text
8 - 75' SINGLE FAMILY

AutoCAD SHX Text
20 - 50' PATIO HOMES

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAINAGE EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAINAGE EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
UTILITY

AutoCAD SHX Text
10 - 50' PATIO HOMES

AutoCAD SHX Text
11 - 65' SINGLE FAMILY

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 - 104' 4-PLEX ROW HOMES (8 UNITS)

AutoCAD SHX Text
7 - 104' 4-PLEX ROW HOMES (28 UNITS)

AutoCAD SHX Text
3 - 80'  TWIN HOMES (6 UNITS)

AutoCAD SHX Text
3 - 65' SINGLE FAMILY

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 - 104' 4-PLEX ROW HOMES (8 UNITS)

AutoCAD SHX Text
3 - 104' 4-PLEX ROW HOMES (28 UNITS)

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 - 65' SINGLE FAMILY

AutoCAD SHX Text
FRONT

AutoCAD SHX Text
BLDG PAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
4-PLEX ROW HOMES

AutoCAD SHX Text
REAR

AutoCAD SHX Text
REAR

AutoCAD SHX Text
BLDG PAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
FRONT

AutoCAD SHX Text
TWIN HOMES

AutoCAD SHX Text
PATIO HOMES

AutoCAD SHX Text
REAR

AutoCAD SHX Text
BLDG PAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
FRONT

AutoCAD SHX Text
FRONT

AutoCAD SHX Text
SINGLE FAMILY HOMES

AutoCAD SHX Text
BLDG PAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
REAR

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCEPT DATA GROSS SITE AREA: 82.6 ACRES LOT AREA: 54.7 ACRES R/W AREA: 15.7 ACRES PONDING/OPEN AREA: 12.2 ACRES

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHECKED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SURVEYED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
HANOVER COVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCEPT SKETCH PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
HANOVER, MN

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAPHIC

AutoCAD SHX Text
JVS

AutoCAD SHX Text
JVS

AutoCAD SHX Text
KVD

AutoCAD SHX Text
JANUARY 25, 2018

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 OF 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT TYPES   # OF LOTS # OF LOTS 65' SINGLE FAMILY  91 91 75' SINGLE FAMILY  39 39 80' TWIN HOMES  30 (60 UNITS) 30 (60 UNITS) 50' PATIO HOMES  71 71 104' 4-PLEX ROW  19 (76 UNITS) 19 (76 UNITS) 250 (337 UNITS)

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRELIMINARY LOT CONFIGURATIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT LEGEND PATIO HOMES SINGLE FAMILY HOMES TWIN HOMES 4-PLEX ROW HOMES

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEVELOPER: PAXMAR, LLC 3495 NORTHDALE BLVD SUITE 210 COON RAPIDS, MN  55448



3rd 
Stre

et 
NE

Crow River

Highway 19

33 10TH

R
IV

ER

8TH

4TH

H
AU

G

JA
NSEN

LA
BE

AU
X

H
AM

LI
N

HA
LS

EY

JA
N

D
EL

3RD

BEEBE LAKE

5TH

G
AR

R
IS

O
N

9TH

KA
LD

ER

RI
VE

RV
IE

W

KA
YL

A

IB
AR

R
A

ID
ES

O
N

DIVISION

M
AL

L A
R

D

11TH

H
AN

SA
C

K

IF
F E

R
T

17TH

6TH

ER
IN

14TH

JA
BE

R

M
E A

N
D

ER

GILLARD

IRVINE 12TH

LA
M

O
N

T

CHURCH

KA
IT

LI
N

13TH

7TH

KA
T Y

D
ID

ROLL
IN

G
LA

D
YS

L I
P P

ER

KALEN

O
AKW

O
O

D

IH
R

I G

EMERALD

KALLAND

CROW RIVER

LYNWOOD

EASTRLY OAKS

MEADOWBROOK

M
EA

DO
W

LA
RK

H
AM

ILTO
N

JALGER

H
AM

M
O

N
D

KA
LE

A

GARNET

JASMINE

M
ILL PO

N
D

KA
D

LE
R

OVERLOOK

10TH

KALEN

5TH

JANSEN

9TH

10TH

11TH

8TH

6TH

3RD

JA
NS

EN

9TH

9TH

9TH

10TH

4TH

IB
AR

R
A

12TH

109th Ave

Pr
a i

rie
 L

n

C
ro

w
-h

as
sa

n 
Pa

rk
 R

d

R
os

ed
a l

e 
A v

e

G
inseng La

W
hite Tail  D

r

C
o u

nt
y  

H
w

y  
19Jo

nq
ui

l L
a

109th Ave N

107th Ave

W
hit

e T
ale

 La

M
ill Pond Tr

109th Ave

Future Land Use - Map 5
Land Use

Rural Preservation: 0.4 DU/Acre (2.5 Ac)

Conservation Design: 0.2 DU/Acre (5 Ac) - 1.5 DU/Acre ( 2/3 Ac)

Neighborhood Residential: 1.0 DU/Acre (1 Ac)  - 2.18 DU/Acre (20,000 sf)

Shoreland Residential

Commercial

Downtown River Commercial

Industrial

Public

Park/Open Space

Rivers, Lakes & Major Wetlands

Ecological/Greenway Corridor

City Boundary

Prepared:  July, 2008
Amended: July, 2009

0 0.4 0.8 1.2 1.6
Miles











1 
 

  CITY OF HANOVER 
COUNTIES OF WRIGHT AND HENNEPIN 

STATE OF MINNESOTA 
 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2017-____ 
 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 10  
PERTAINING TO MINERAL EXTRACTION 

 
 
THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF HANOVER ORDAINS AS FOLLOWS: 
 
Section 1. Certain definitions in Section 10.01 of the City of Hanover Code of 
Ordinances are repealed in their entirety as follows:   
 

Mining. 
 
 
Section 2.   New definitions are added to Section 10.01 of the Hanover Code of 
Ordinances as follows: 
 

Blasting. The practice or occupation of removing, by means of explosives, any 
mass, especially rocks, buildings, etc. 

Haul Road. An internal private road used to transport material. 
 
Haul Route. An external public road used to transport material. 
 
Mining.  The process of extraction and removal of sand, gravel, rock, aggregate, 
minerals, or similar materials for financial gain. 
 
Mineral Extraction. Extraction of inorganic materials such as ore, gravel or sand.  
 
Mining, accessory use.  Uses customarily incidental to mining located on the same 
site, such as stockpiling, sorting, screening, washing, crushing, batching, recycling 
of concrete, asphalt, and related maintenance facilities. 

 
Reclamation/End Use. The process of creating useful landscapes that meet a variety 
of goals. It includes all aspects of this work, including material placement, 
stabilizing, capping, regrading, and placing cover soils, revegetation, and 
maintenance. 
 
Stockpile. A pile or storage location for bulk materials, forming part of the bulk 
material handling process. Stockpiles are normally created by a stacking conveyor. 
 



2 
 

Topsoil. The upper outermost layer of soil, usually in the top two (2) to eight inches 
(8"). It has the highest concentration of organic matter and is where most of the 
earth's biological soil activity occurs. 
 
Explosives. Any chemical or other substance intended for the purpose of 
producing an explosion or that contains oxidizing or combustible units or other 
ingredients in such proportions or quantities that ignition by fire, by friction, by 
concussion, by percussion or by detonation may produce an explosion capable 
of causing injury to persons or damage to property. The term "explosive" 
includes, but is not limited to, the following: black powder (all varieties), dry 
gun cotton, nitroglycerine, dynamite, chlorates, fulminates, all sensitized 
ammonium nitrate compositions and any other of their compounds or mixtures, 
smokeless powder, wet gun cotton and wet nitrostarch. 

Section 3.  Section 10.25 and Section 10.27 are amended as follows: 
 
 Mineral Extraction is added as an Interim Use in all zoning districts. 
 
Section 4. A new Section 10.72 is added as follows:   
 

SECTION 10.72   MINERAL EXTRACTION 
 
 

A.  PURPOSE 
 
The purpose of this Section is to control mining operations so as to minimize conflicts 
with adjacent land uses and to ensure that the mining area is reclaimed with a use 
compatible with the Comprehensive Land Use Plan and completely restored at the 
completion of the mining operation.   
 
 

B.  ADMINISTRATION 
 

1. Permit Review.  An interim use permit shall be required for all mining 
operations.  All existing operations shall obtain a permit within five (5) 
years following adoption of this Ordinance.  The City Council may also 
require a financial guarantee in a form acceptable to the City from the 
landowner to ensure that the conditions in this Section are met. 

 
2. Portable asphalt and concrete mixing plants are not allowed as an 

accessory use to a mining operation.   
  
3. Asphalt and concrete recycling facilities may be allowed as accessory uses 

in a mining operation with an approved Interim Use subject to the 
following standards: 

 



3 
 

a. A Wright or Hennepin County Solid Waste License is issued for 
the facility (conditions may be placed on the license limiting 
volumes, stockpile height, stockpile location, crushing hours, or 
any other conditions the County considers necessary to protect the 
interest of the surrounding area). 
 

b. A financial surety in a form acceptable to the City is established to 
ensure the removal of stockpiled recycle material.  The amount of 
the financial surety shall be established by the City based on the 
volume of material approved in the IUP to be stored on-site. 
 

c. Processing of recycled material shall be done in compliance with 
paragraph D of this Section. 
 

d. The maximum volume of recycle material on any one site shall not 
exceed 30,000 cubic yards. 

 
4. The operations covered by this Section shall be the mining, crushing, 

washing, refining, or processing of sand, gravel, rock, black dirt, peat, and 
soil and the removal thereof from the site.   

 
5. For the purposes of this Section, mining shall not include the removal of 

materials associated with the construction of a building, the removal of 
excess materials in accordance with approved plats, utility or highway 
construction, agricultural improvements within the property, sod removal  
and minor wetland impacts under 20,000 square feet of cumulative 
impacts (previous and proposed) that have received an approved “no loss” 
or “exemption” determination from the local government unit 
administering the Wetland Conservation Act. 

 
6. Renewal of Mining Interim Use Permits.  All property owners and 

residents within one quarter (1/4) mile of the mining operation shall be 
notified of a proposed mining interim use permit renewal request. 

 
7. Annual Certificate of Permit Compliance.  As a condition of any mining 

interim use permit, the property owner and/or applicant shall annually 
submit graphic and/or narrative information on the mining operation 
demonstrating compliance with the approved interim use permit, progress 
on reclamation plans, and related conditions.  Said compliance 
information shall be submitted thirty (30) days prior to the anticipated 
opening date of the mine each spring.  The Zoning Administrator shall 
review the compliance information and conduct a field inspection to 
certify that the mining operation is in compliance with the approved 
interim use permit and the financial surety are adequate to complete the 
restoration.  The certification shall be completed before mining begins.  
Failure to submit the annual compliance information or violations of the 



4 
 

interim use permit may be grounds for revocation of the interim use 
permit. 

 
 

C.  INFORMATION REQUIRED 
 

The following information shall be provided by the person or agency requesting the 
interim use permit: 

 
1. Name and address of person or agency requesting the interim use permit. 
 
2. The legal property description and acreage of area to be mined. 
 
3. The following maps of the entire site and including all areas within three 

hundred fifty (350) feet of the site.  All maps shall be drawn at a scale of 
one (1) inch to one hundred (100) feet unless otherwise stated below. 

 
Map A - Existing conditions to include: 

a. Contour map (two (2) foot intervals). 
b. Existing vegetation. 
c. Wetlands and existing surface water drainage patterns. 
d. Existing structures. 
e. Existing wells. 

 
Map B - Proposed Operations to include: 

a. Structures to be erected. 
b. Location of sites to be mined showing depth of proposed 

excavation. 
c. Location of machinery to be used in the mining operation. 
d. Location of storage of mined materials, showing maximum 

height of storage deposits. 
e. Location of vehicle parking, access roads and local routes 

to truck routes. 
f. Staging of mining activity. 

 
Map C - End Use Plan to include: 

a. Final grade of proposed site showing elevations and 
contour lines at two (2) foot intervals. 

b. Location and species of vegetation to be replanted. 
c. Reclamation staging plan. 
d. Proposed land use and development plan. 

 
4. A plan for dust and noise control. 
 
5. A complete description of all phases of the proposed operation to include 

an estimate of duration of the mining operation, location and approximate 
acreage of each stage, and time schedule for reclamation. 



5 
 

 
6. A description of haul routes to be utilized. 
 
7. Any other information requested by the Zoning Administrator, Planning 

Advisory Commission and City Council. 
 

 
D.  PERFORMANCE STANDARDS 

 
For mining operations approved after the date of adoption of this Ordinance: 

 
1. General Provisions.  Weeds and any other unsightly or noxious vegetation 

shall be cut or trimmed as may be necessary to preserve a reasonably neat 
appearance and to minimize seeding on adjacent property.  All equipment 
used for mining and extraction operations shall be constructed, maintained 
and operated in a manner to minimize, as far as practical, noise, dust and 
vibrations adversely affecting the surrounding property. 

 
2. Water Resources.  The mining operation shall be conducted in such a 

manner as to minimize interference with the surface water drainage 
outside of the boundaries of the mining operation. 

 
3. Safety Fencing.  Safety fencing may be required around all or portions of 

the mining operation at the discretion of the City. 
 
4. Haul Roads.  Haul roads shall have direct access to public roads that are 

classified as a collector and that do not require access through an area 
utilized for residential purposes or through downtown Hanover.  The 
location of the intersection of haul roads with any public roads shall be 
selected such that traffic on the access roads will have a sufficient distance 
of public road in view so that any turns onto the public road can be 
completed with a margin of safety as determined by the Zoning 
Administrator. 

 
5. Haul Routes.  Haul routes on city collector roads shall be identified and 

shall be located in a manner that provides the closest proximity from a 
haul road to the nearest county or state road. The city collector road 
designated as the haul route must be constructed as 10-ton roads.  In the 
event that a collector road does not meet these requirements, the project 
proposer shall upgrade the roads at their sole expense.   

 
6. Screening Barrier.  To minimize problems of dust and noise and to shield 

mining operations from public view, a screening barrier shall be required 
between the mining site and adjacent properties.  A screening barrier shall 
also be required between the mining site and any public road located 
within five hundred (500) feet of any mining or processing operation.  A 
viewshed analysis shall be submitted with the application includes the 



6 
 

development of a model of site specific conditions such as topography, 
vegetation, equipment, stockpiles and proposed site structures.  Key view 
areas shall be represented through drawings, photos, cross-sections or 
other imaging methods.  The screening barrier shall consist of berms 
which shall be planted with a species of fast growing trees.  The tree 
species must be approved by the Zoning Administrator. 

 
7. Dust.  Operators shall utilize all practical means to reduce the amount of 

dust caused by the operation. In no case shall the amount of dust or other 
particulate matter exceed the standards established by the Minnesota 
Pollution Control Agency. 

 
8. Setback.  Processing of minerals including recycle materials shall not be 

conducted closer than two hundred fifty (250) feet to the property line, nor 
closer than five hundred (500) feet to any residential structures. 

 
a. Mining operations shall not be conducted closer than two hundred 

(200) feet to any residence or residential zoning district boundary 
existing on the approval date of the mining interim use permit.   

 
b. Mining operations shall not be conducted closer than one hundred 

(100) feet to any property line, or within one hundred feet (100) 
feet of the right-of-way line of any existing or platted street, road 
or highway, except that the City Council may permit excavating to 
be conducted within such limits in order to reduce the elevation 
thereof in conformity to the existing or platted street, road or 
highway engineering plans.  Side slopes of the mining operation 
shall be in conformance with the site plan. 

 
9. Appearance.  All buildings, structures and equipment shall be maintained 

in such a manner as is practical and according to acceptable industrial 
practice to assure that such buildings, structures and equipment will not 
become dilapidated. 

 
10. Hours of Operation.  All mining operations shall be conducted between 

the hours of 7:00 a.m. and 7:00 p.m. on weekdays only. 
 
11. Haul Roads.  All haul roads from mining operations to public highways, 

roads or streets shall be paved for a distance of not less than five hundred 
(500) feet from the point of intersection of the haul road with the public 
highway, road or street. 

 
12. Mining Operations Within the Shoreland District.  Mining and processing 

operations shall not be located in the shoreland district.   
 
13.  Mining Operations Within the Floodplain or Floodway.  Mining and 

processing operations shall not be located in the floodplain or floodway.   



7 
 

 
14. Mining Operations Near Water Table.  Not less than ten (10) feet of 

separation shall be maintained between the lowest grade mining at which 
mining is permitted and the water table.   

 
15. Blasting/Explosives.  Blasting is prohibited. 
 
16. Noise.  The operator shall exercise its best efforts to control noise to 

minimum practical levels. Backup horns, bells, strobe lights, and other 
warning devices shall be adjusted to the minimum level required by law.  
Operator shall use broadband or white noise backup alarms on all its 
mobile equipment.  

 
 

E.  LAND RECLAMATION 
 

All mining sites shall be reclaimed immediately after mining operations cease.  
Reclamation shall be completed within one (1) year.  The following standards shall 
apply: 

 
1. Within a period of three (3) months after the final termination of a mining 

operation, or within three (3) months after abandonment of such operation 
for a period of six (6) months, or within three (3) months after expiration 
of a mining permit, all buildings, structures and plants incidental to such 
operation shall be dismantled and removed by, and at the expense of, the 
mining operator last operating such buildings, structures and plants.  An 
extension may be granted for those buildings, structures, machinery and 
plants required to process previously mined materials stored on the site.  
Security acceptable to the City shall be required.  Such extension may 
apply for only one (1) year, after which said buildings, structures, 
machinery and plants shall be removed. 

 
2. No part of the reclamation area which is planned for utilization for uses 

other than open space shall be at an elevation lower than the minimum 
required for gravity connection to sanitary and storm sewer. Provision for 
surface water run-off shall be made. All property shall be graded to 
properly drain.  The peaks and depressions of the area shall be graded and 
back-filled to a surface which will result in a gently rolling topography in 
substantial conformity to the land area immediately surrounding, and 
which will minimize erosion due to rainfall.  No finished slope shall 
exceed twenty (20) percent grade. 

 
3. Reclamation shall begin after the mining of twenty-five percent (25%) of 

the total area to be mined or ten (10) acres, whichever is less.  Once these 
areas have been depleted of the aggregate deposit they shall be sloped and 
seeded in compliance with the end use plan. 

 



8 
 

4. Reclaimed areas shall be surfaced with soil of a quality at least equal to 
the topsoil of land areas immediately surrounding, and to a depth of at 
least six (6) inches.  The topsoil shall be seeded, sodded, or planted.  Such 
planting shall adequately retard soil erosion. 

 
5. The finished grade shall be such that it will not adversely affect the 

surrounding land or future development of the site and shall be consistent 
with the end use plan. 

 
 
 
 
Section 4. This Ordinance shall be in force and effect after adoption and publication 
in summary form in the official newspaper of the City of Hanover in accordance with 
applicable law.  Staff is directed to prepare a summary form of the ordinance. 
 
 
Adopted by the Hanover City Council this ___th day of ____________, 2017. 
 
 
      CITY OF HANOVER 
 
 
  
 Chris Kauffman, Mayor 
 
 
 
 
Attest: 

 

  
  
Brian Hagen, City Administrator  

 



   

Collaborative Planning, LLC 

Memorandum 

Date: February 26, 2018 

To: Planning Commission 

From:  Cindy Nash, City Planner 

RE: H&R Construction – Site Plan 

An application has been received for a site plan to utilize an existing vacant lot for outside storage uses.  A copy 
of the site plan is included in your packets. 

The lot fronts on 8th Street, which is an unimproved city right of way.  Adjacent lots have been using the right of 
way as a driveway.  The applicant is requesting not to improve the right of way, but to instead enter into an 
agreement with the City to utilize the right of way as a private driveway. 

A cul-de-sac and associated easement will be required  in order to provide for adequate access for emergency 
vehicles. 

A fence is shown on the plans, but a sample was not provided with the application.  Town and Country Fence 
has inquired as to whether a fence type as shown below would be acceptable to the City: 

 



H&R Construction 

2/23/2018  2 

 

Staff has reviewed the proposal and find it to be in conformance with the Zoning Ordinance and other City 
regulations.   

Recommendation 

It is recommended that the site plan be approved subject to the following conditions: 

1.  Development of the site must be in substantial conformance with the plans prepared by Otto and 
Associates and last revised on December 27, 2017.   

2. The developer and adjacent property owners shall enter into a driveway agreement acceptable to 
the City.  The agreement shall be negotiated and signed by all other entities prior to the site plan 
being placed on the City Council agenda for consideration.  The city shall not be responsible for 
maintenance, which shall be completed at the sole expense of the adjacent property owners. 

3. An easement for the cul-de-sac that is satisfactory to the City shall be provided. 

4. The cul-de-sac shall be improved at the sole expense of the developer. 

5. Fence condition (Note that a condition related to the fence type required should be added). 

 


















	2-26-18 Agenda
	UCHAIRU           UBOARD MEMBERSU
	STAN KOLASA      JIM SCHENDEL
	MICHAEL CHRISTENSON
	UCOUNCIL LIAISONU     MICHELLE ARMSTRONG
	DOUG HAMMERSENG     DEAN KUITUNEN


	1-22-18 Minutes Draft
	City Planner memo 10677 Jonquil CUP
	10677 Jonquil Aeriel Photo
	Site Plan
	Hanover Cove PC Staff Report
	Item 1:  Comprehensive Plan Amendment
	Public Hearing: February 26, 2018 Planning Commission
	Existing Comprehensive Plan Guidance
	Public Hearing: None Required

	Paxmar Hanover Concept 01-25-18
	Sheets and Views
	Layout1


	2009 Future Land Use Map
	Comp Plan Amend App
	Concept Plan App
	Ordinance Mining draft3
	Ordinance No. 2017-____
	Section 10.72   MINERAL EXTRACTION
	A.  PURPOSE
	B.  ADMINISTRATION
	C.  INFORMATION REQUIRED
	D.  PERFORMANCE STANDARDS
	E.  LAND RECLAMATION


	comments pc feb2018 hrconstruction
	hanoverapplication
	16-0467 01 SHEET SITE PLAN 12-27-17
	16-0467 02 SHEET GRADING PLAN 12-27-17
	16-0467 03 SHEET SWPPP 12-27-17
	16-0467 04 SHEET SWPPP NARRATIVE 12-27-17
	16-0467 EASEMENT EXHIBIT 12-28-17

